
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, November 6, 2020 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (KI) 

 

Code of Ordinances Public Hearing 
5. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix E 

(Broadband Ready Community) 

 

Road Abandonment Public Hearing 
6. Consideration of Road Abandonment - portion of Horton Drive (KI) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign revised final plat for Phoenix Crossing Phase II (staff-

P&D) 

9. Approval of FY2020 Budget Amendment #2 (staff-Finance) 

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Standard Utility Agreement/Actual Cost Utility 

Agreement-Water Facilities (staff-CM) 

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign Georgia Department of Transportation Request for Traffic 

Signal (BW) 

12. Surplus Fixed Asset for Sale (staff-CM) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 

14. County Attorney Report 

15. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
16. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

5. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix E (Broadband 

Ready Community)

2



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

EXPLANATION OF DOCUMENTS: 

 

Red language equals added text. 

Struck through language equals deleted text. 

 

APPENDIX E - BROADBAND READY COMMUNITY 

 

Sec. 1. - Short title. 

This ordinance shall be titled the "Putnam County Broadband Ready Community Ordinance." 

 

Sec. 2. - Definitions. 

For the purpose of this ordinance, the following terms, phrases, words and derivations shall have the 

meaning given herein.  When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include 

the future, words in the plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular number 

include the plural number.  The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely dicta. 

 

1. Broadband network project. Any deployment of broadband services. 

 

2. Political subdivision. A county, municipal corporation, consolidated government, or local 

authority. 

 

3. Applicant. A person applying for a permit for a broadband network project. 

 

4. Permit. Any local permit, license, certificate approval, registration, or similar form of approval 

required by policy, administrative rule, regulation, ordinance, or resolution with respect to a 

broadband network project. 

 

Sec. 3. - Single Point of Contact.  

Putnam County, Georgia shall appoint a single point of contact for all matters related to a broadband network 

project: 

a) The single point of contact shall be:  

 

 County Manager 

 Paul Van Haute 

 Putnam County 

 706.485.5826 

 pvanhaute@putnamcountyga.us  

 https://www.putnamcountyga.us/administration 

 

b) The single point of contact shall be available for matters related to a broadband network project 

or a related liaison who may direct such inquiry in real time, with general scope and 

responsibilities to include permitting and right-of-way; and 

 

c) The single point of contact information must be current to maintain designation, by updating 

with such change in contact information on web pages and associated sources, within 15 calendar 

days of change. 

 

 

 

3



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

Sec. 4 - Application Completeness Review.  

a) Putnam County shall determine whether an application is incomplete and notify the applicant, 

by email, of the determination by Putnam County within 10 calendar days of receiving an 

application. 

 

b) If Putnam County does not respond to the applicant on whether the application is incomplete, 

within 10 calendar days, the application shall be assumed to be complete on the 11th day. 

 

Sec. 5 - Notification of Incomplete Application. 

a) If Putnam County determines that an application is not complete, the notification by email to the 

applicant shall specify all required components of the submitted application that were considered 

‘incomplete’. 

 

b) Putnam County’s response shall include a checklist of sequenced items that resulted in the 

application being deemed ‘incomplete’ and the review timeline shall be as follows: 

i. The applicant has up to 40 calendar days from the date of notification of incompleteness to 

respond back with corrections; and  

ii. If the applicant does not respond back within 40 calendar days, the application is deemed 

canceled. 

 

c) Putnam County shall require a new submission and reset the process and application fees, should 

an application be deemed incomplete a second time.  

 

Sec. 6 - Approval or Denial Notification.  

If, on or before the 11th day as described in 4 (b), an application is deemed complete, Putnam County shall 

approve or deny an application within 10 calendar days unless a joint meeting between the applicant and 

Putnam County is deemed as necessary. 

a) If a joint meeting is deemed necessary, the joint meeting must occur within 15 calendar days of 

notification of completion and the joint meeting shall include: 

i. Where applicant is going to conduct work,  

ii. When the work will be conducted,  

iii. What type of work will be done,  

iv. Who Putnam County can contact for specific details or related questions, and  

v. Any permit seeking approval under application. 

 

b) Following a joint meeting between the applicant and Putnam County, Putnam County shall deny 

or approve the application within 10 calendar days. 

 

c) Upon final approval, any required permits shall be deemed issued. 

 

Sec. 7 - Related Fees. 

a) Any fee imposed by Putnam County to review an application, issue a permit, or perform any 

other activity related to a broadband network project shall be reasonable, cost based, and 

nondiscriminatory to all applicants.  

 

b) Any application fee that exceeds $100.00 shall be considered unreasonable unless Putnam 

County can provide documentation justifying such fee based on a specific cost. 

 

 

4



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

Sec. 8 - Other Information.  

a) Double Fee: No City or County shall require an application or permit(s) when already approved 

by an authorized state or federal jurisdiction.  Provider shall notify and provide a copy of the 

approved permit to the single-point-of-contact at the City or County prior to access of right-of-

way within the City or County jurisdiction. 

 

b) Application Validity Timeline: Any approved application shall be valid for six months from the 

date of approval.  Should a provider not commence the service request qualified in the approved 

application within six months, the application shall expire, and it shall require a new permit 

approval and any associated fees, as applicable. 

 

c) Single Service Drop: A City or County shall not require a permit for a broadband service provider 

to perform an installation of broadband service at an individual customer’s service address as 

long as the facility being utilized only transverses a deminimis portion of the public right-of-way 

to reach the customer’s property.  The provider must still comply with the provisions of Chapter 

9 of Title 25 of the O.C.G.A. 

  

Sec. 9 - Putnam County acknowledges: 

a) A Georgia Certified Broadband Ready Community has an affirmative duty to notify the Georgia 

Department of Community Affairs of any changes to the information submitted as part of its 

application; and  

 

b) Failure to notify Georgia Department of Community Affairs of changes may result in revocation 

of Putnam County’s Broadband Ready Certification, should the certification be granted. 

 

This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the governing body upon final 

reading. 

 

PASSED AND SO ORDERED, this  day of  , 2020. 

 

 

 

 

Billy Webster 

Chairman 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



File Attachments for Item:

6. Consideration of Road Abandonment - portion of Horton Drive (KI)

6



 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

Agenda Item Request Form  
 

 
DATE OF MEETING REQUESTED: __________________________________________________________  
 
REQUEST BY: ______________________________________________________________________________
 
AGENDA ITEM: ____________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________

 
AGENDA ITEM TYPE:  

      * 
 

______________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
*ACTION REQUESTED: ____________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION PROVIDED:     
 
BUDGET/FUNDING INFORMATION: _______________________________________________________
 
FACTS AND/OR ISSUES: ___________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7



ROAD ABANDONMENT CHECKLIST 

 
Name of Road ___________________________________________ 
 

When there is a request to abandon a county road the following steps must be followed: 

 

1. The Board of Commissioners must approve beginning the process at a regular board meeting. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

2. A “Notice of Intent to Abandon A County Road” must be published in the legal organ of the 

county for two weeks. 

 

Completed   Dates ____________________________ 

 

3. Post signs at each end of the road proposed to be abandoned. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

4. Public hearing is held. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

5. Board of Commissioners approves Certification of Road Abandonment at a regular board 

meeting.  

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

a.  A copy of the certification and plat is mailed to the property owner(s). 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

b.  A copy of the certification and plat is published in the county’s legal organ for two 

weeks. 

 

Completed   Dates ____________________________ 

 

6. Board of Commissioners declares road abandoned and authorizes Chairman to sign affidavit 

of abandonment (and, if needed, resolution conveying land to property owner and quit-claim 

deed) at a regular board meeting. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

a.  County attorney prepares an affidavit of abandonment (and, if needed, resolution and 

quit-claim deed), to be executed by the Chairman, and files the affidavit and quit-

claim deed with the Putnam County Superior Court. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

Horton Drive (portion of)

10-02-2020

10-22-2020 & 10-29-2020

10-20-2020

11-06-2020

✔

✔

✔

8



9



10



·:.:·· . . ··~ .. 

io!Pn 
PLA T_)'Jook 6 Page 136 
On n?MJ74 _, 

108 

GEORGIA. PUTNAM COUNTY: 

This Indenture. Made -and entered into · this~f-4 day of 
• • I 

Nove11ber. 1971, between .H. D. Horton. Sr., as party of the first '·: ,. . 
;1 part. and Putn111 County, Georgia, as party of the second part • . 

~ WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of 
'I 

~ One ($1.00) Dollar, in hand paid . at and before the sea11~g and 

delivery of these presents. receipt of which is hereby acknow

ledged, and the fuPther benefits and . advant~ges to be deri~ed by 

the grantor and ' others from the opening ind construction of 

· roads through the land herein referred to. the party of the first : 

part has this day bargained. sold and conveyed. and doe~ ' llereby 

bargain , sell and convey to Putnam County, Georgia. its successors 

.: and assigns. a perpetual right of way or easement for roads to. 
ii . 

over and upon the following land, to-wit: 

All t~at tract or parcel of land. lyfng and being fn Putnam County, 
Georgia. and befog a strip of land 50 ft. fn width running from 
the Glenwood Springs Road to the old Eatonton-Macon· Highway and 
from the New Eatonton-Macon Highway to property of Owens-Illinois. 
Safd 50 ft . strip of land fs further designated as being that I 
50 ft. strf p shown as "Proposed Road" on seven (7) plats prepared 
by W. Henry Watterson, ·R. S. #398. dated July 19. 1971 and said 7· 
plats are recorded in Plat Book 4, pages 294-295-296-291~298-299• ! 
and 300, Clerk's Off1ce. Putna11 Superior Court and these plats 
by reference are made a part of thfs description. 

The 50 ft . strip on safd plats between the old Eatonton! Macon 
Highway and the new Eatonton-Macon Highway is specifically not 
conveye~ by this · instruautnt .- · 

To Have and To Hold sa1d described pre~ises. together wfth 

,. all and, singular the rights. prfv11 .eges and a.ppurtenancn there

:. unto belonging. unto the said Putnam · County, Georgia. ancf' 'f ts 

successors, perpetual.ly for road and right o.f way purposes. for 

; water. sewer~ drainage. and. gas lfnes and such other public pur
l· 

poses as 11ay appertain theret'o." but should the same be discontinued 
l . I 

. abandoned, or cease to be used for such purpose. then the same 
i 
I 

i 
· shall revert to the. grantorr iis heirs ·or ass~gns, accordfng to 

· their respective foterests in the property adjacent thereto. 

;• full warranties of title. 
wf~h l 

' •, .. 
'• 
·' 
~ i 

i ~ 
.I .. 

"\. 

i 

·• . 

;· 
I • 
I ' 

[-. 

~ .. 

I 
. I 

1· 

k 
l 

i 
i 
I· 
I 
I 
i 
I 

11



I 
I 
·l 
! 
l 
I 

l 
:::z,.oi· ·tt 1 

1 

109 

I 
I 
I 

I 
! 
i 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said party of the .first part has I 
he~eunto set his . hand and aff1ied h1s seal the day and year 

!; abov~ written. . ... .. 
.. , 

S1gned, sealed & delivered 

in the presence of: 

:, 

'''°: : : _; • 

t. 

~~· ··· · •,' 1 •• ·,! • 

:.L.~ -- H.P. 

. . .:,, ff: Iii~ [JQ>l(OJ "-"-·--· • 

. ' ! . · 

. ' . 
. ' ·---. '· ,,,,., 

•. , ,( .~Q..iary .SEial Af;f.1.xed l ' 

'· 

. . ; '\~ . . 
. ·, .: : : ~ .. 

·.: ·. _ i ' \ • .. 

. 
" ii ' . . .. ! 

' :i 
I ., 

'I . : 

" 'i 

. !. .·; 

'• ' .. 
: . ... . '":. 

1: 1· '• . .! • • , . • •• ; • 

; ,. : ;: 1 ·. ·: 

: . : ~. l. • .• 

·: ·: , ' 

•; ·~ :, t. ~- . . . . " t • 

.... 
:.1 . • 'J' : •, . ; 1 ' · 

:··.· . . , .. -.. , 
·' 

,; ' I• o; . .' 
.; 

, . , ... i • . , : · 

!1 . " .. !·: r, •,. 
I o ' ·~ i • t 

' l · · , . :I !°' ' !. • -: ' 1 l' , . .. 

• i, • • •• • • ~ 

01 f ' ... • I ' : ,: : ~ l 0
t /' ( , '

01 
I 

:.. . , - . : \ , .. _:.'··· ·: ... : 

~ : . . . ; . 
. ·; 1, ~" " .. 

• , .'" • I 

.. ~ 
... ... 

, : .• ' i ;• 

.... .... : ,.::·· .-, , .... 

-~ .. ~ /. .. :: .\'. . ... - 1 ' ~ ·: ; ... . , ; ' t ~ J t ~ "' ·•·I ... 

t! I ' (: : ' ~ • 
' •· '° I. ' •,. . : •: , . ", '• i I, \ • ' ~ ' v .:1 

I 
first : 

I 

. ·•'. 

t • • • 

• .. ) . : 

., ... · .. , 

.. !·· ,I '"1! l ··· 

I 

·\ ..... . ~ . .. . . ..... . J ' ' : I 

,. J ! ~ \'• . : t • • • • ,. i 
I 
I 

. I 

I· 
.i 

... ,.. 8 . 'I -"-' 4:S I. tJ I . a lb • I . . ···;\kt,} • .. .. r ·.r .. , 
· -.it."-. . ... 4\l;it-•....,... ') • ;i• .... .......,:.t.V:~!Ptt,·~.,. .,;.: . . .. , ·.: .:......... .. . .-<-1'\} (">I'> 

Filed for record this the 4th day of November , 1971, a t 3:05 P . M. 
Recorded this the 5th d av of ~overnber , 19n1#··! .4 _, /) - £ 

~,4, d_, ~ ·W' h~u~ 
F.liz~beth w. Cardwel l , o.c. s. c. 

\. 

l 
. ..... 'f"' 

•. : 

: . 

.. 
• I 

i· 
i 

I 

l 
I 

1 
I 

l 

J 

1 
.. 

:I, 
:1· 
I 
; 

'1 

·1 

I 

l 

109 

12



1: 
! 

'' ' .. 
·' :. 
:) 

PLAT BOOK 4 PAGE 294a 

• ' -:::'\• I 

_?/{ !.'/-'£A.'TY IJ,< /f(?J. //-.1 'ri/~f!.tt. 
~c. · .•!'; / t:r1 L1f."'.{ l lr~r,, /1//f;.:,,_,, , 
t 'r. , .-; /'y' Ci ,,·r./_J l<l 
.J'o;u: /": Zc-e> ' / - / (i . /;;) '// 

.__;__. _J..!L,_~/1,·1 ~.:' ··- ~·r,. . ./. /. , .(//.:;. 
J",, , / ,,r',.,- c ,: (·:/, N1 -. 11 :.1.- l .; / n/' ·;·1 :f , 

.;,, , { {. t • -:_n-.:.:.( /'1;, .,., ~ (r,,·~·Jl..r 
~~/"<:·.· ·/ .-..-r"d) 

. I ' .:;. ' •er/ -1:/l tt'f· . · I -·f LC/. J · > «o.r:~1.:..t..!L_ 

· ti". H ~ ,,,·y II,/; tfr,:J ' " 
.c J. ,; .J 9a 

.f't c T1c r/ ~".3 A0:r/.' 

,, ., 

' 

13



, , : I I wa1 - , , , . 
11 

1ell ·ro IP.LAT BOO:{( 4, PAGE 294b 

Q .C.. 

lf:L·'ri ,-_(J',R, 
·,, h/~,P/// / 

~I;:,,:// 

,., /_ i .-llk. 
.;./n/' ·' ~ 
::, (, .//u-.·"~ 

~<£!"~~ 
~tie~''' 
98 

/ ' / • 
(. ,~ r,.. 

N 

. ' 

· . ~ 

· ~.-;~ 
·w. 

... ;~~ 

,_.,'f--B 

~ .. _9~~-\_.-l~~-J_ I! 7 \ ,/±~~L~ C:.S .C . . 
-·~-~· 

I 

t' ., 
,v ... ,, ... .. 

_j' ti J/ ;: l /t' t:'Y I I ~; /IC--.-? i-A (ii:.-
~~,.,,,,·£.! ry er,///' l)_ &-e~ti1,,,./~ Lcc,r.-i-£'v ti,,,, · £n·r.t.e 
/'"/; ,'£~ //,,-0 L/~•£ '/1VL///fcfL/r?.:.£' ~/ "~"· ) L r <,;/17'!!'0 /H 

-'~T/V'/M/ CPYN "Y, · 61::occ;,..L1 ' 
. 1 

f 

I ~//I ~/~kl/.~; ' /29, .. ~RJ.:/-'I' 
_j}.cr/o,.,,1# I 
J~.:T/&d ~ 2 

, ~. :ii ,,,,~·, ,,,~ I 
tc,6;; : 

J ·£.:r 1c ,; r.t .3 ;-Q;:L! : • '"",~:.! I - ·-. . /"-··1 /fC1 , 
/ ...,,; . ~ ( . ! • 

)'tJ<.'TW o/ ckl t/.' ... : ,t/:,,''/, ; : K'.141{ 

{7rp.11r,, k>:JE..t; Co ;f e o;--e ~oL 
J • • • • ~,IC.) 

~I~ .?Ct> ~ /o/1, ~"'- ~ !, 0 .:u 71•'' 
•'h'k£·~,'Jf..hf•n:?,~u • 1.''cr.,,TC:/I::, 

.) £CT"/~, I 7. !Ji!> P.I/ !l , 00 p ; ,of ,lk:,,.,~ 
,/Ecr1odll',Z /./ ,7!) :!,/.~/ §,5,20 
_,'"''1"'/C>/I/ ~ 3 {, .~"I l..t/.BZ 4~, 23 6,t/.59 
J'a: r10N # 4 _ _ ., ___ . 11/~°r; ___ _LZ.~:. ,._x§~2"--=:;=&'== 

/.d.52 .~H. 72 / Z."':, .t/f, ------ '~ __!_'?.l:JO 

j7,1 J"'Pyt< ./ b y....&d_<zl;~-:<r .@'rk~~-=!.-
w . /i-,,,-/"i¢ .'f'/e';Jr, - · 

Rs. 3llt: ;;;,!. 

/Zr~L., Z:t.8,J,/ij Ah, · 

l-!1-l!ll 

L __ _ - . -·- -----··-"' -----------.-----~?:-~· 

• 

-=-
-
=--.; 

=-----
=-. 
--
--
=-
=-;;; 

--
-
-
=-N 
--

-=-

~! ;;. = 
~" 

" ~ 
\~ i1 

~ 

r "' = 
~ )-.. 

=+ ... = c -= ~ = () . •• • ~ <:.) 
u 
:z: 

UI : £ - ~ ~ . 
......; s::: V) .. ~ +-:z: 

0 ~ .1 V) --=(I._ .. -... 
z: · 1 Ci:: 
::;;;> 

~~~ 
= >-__., 
u 

-~ ~ 
- = 0 ,..-

I 
I 

~ = 0 _ 1 (!'.) 
w = 
~- +-

- : 6 . : -
-: 0.. 

Ui : 

14



_j 

i 

I 

--

,. 

RAT-BOOK4 PAGE295 - - - . . ------0:::.... 
I ... •" 
I' 

r 
' ; . 

; . 
. i 

~ 
O o' ' M~O - · - ·-~·---·--· ___ :. ... w .. ·t..,·:· .. ei .. ·.A_," 

U\ 

- · ~ . wa_+iit ... -,F:.._ - ----·-· - - --·--· -
"" ~~·- -· 

15



_j 

i 

! 
,- ·· . 
: .,, , _ 

p -.+ 

·:» 

-

·~ ! .. , 
I • 

' 

.,. 

·~·:)i.;.;;~ .... - -- · "·· 

:eLAT-BOOK 4 PAGE295 . - - - . - - ._._.::._ 

' 
> - • • • -- rFS?iiiti, 

. ·. ' ........ ,, 

ju nN 

.-. ------

·.• 

r 
I; 
' 

16



· . .:/ . 
I 

~'. . 
J• , .. 

..J) 
~ · 

-r 
0-, 

j! 
-.r---..: 

~·-·. ·'9, . ... .. .. . ( 

.. 

A•• J 

.,,. .... . " .. 
·"' 

PLAT BOOK 4 PAGE 296 

,, ' .. 

.. 

' ., 
·~ 

17



·.~
--

-
-

' 
I I

 !i
 I IJ1

i'l1
111

111
11

11
11

11
 

.I 
l''

l'i
'l'l

'j'l
'i'l

'l'i
'i'i

' 
, 

1jl
ij

il
li

 

'•
•.

 '"
 .

 'I
' 

• 
CL

Y
IU

lll
 I

i 
SO

NS
 

.I 
I 

j I
 I 1

:11
111

11•
:11

111
11 

I....
....

....
... 

, 
r, 

·c 
.,. 

• 
. rN

c 
• 

p1
 ..

 -t
 

B
 • 

•
'I

 ,.
J..

:J.
....

.:i.
... 

'.J.
..i.

.1.
i..'

 
\ 

; 
. 

• 
..

. 
• f

 ..
 T

 
l.

i.
1.

1,.'.
U

,'l
..1.

 'l
 _ _

I 
n

•-
C.

o .
.. ,.

."
ty

 ..
 , 

••
 -

'-

-
-
·
-
-

~·
· 

. -~
 . I
 i l 

18



t t 
~
 

'-
cc

 
(
)
 

0 
(.

/'
 r 

0 ~
 

) 
'.

 

~
 
~
 
~
 

\C
 

Q
C

 
-·

-
--

--
---

-
-

--
--

--
·-

·-
·-·

-·-
·_-
_

_
_

_
_

 
--

--
-
-

19



t 
-! 
I 

i 
i 
I 

\ . 
\ ~, 

.... . 

,A .. t~r·. f _;, .. 
"'At ' . 

..J•t?••" 
,~ J(W'T)f 

PLAT BOOK 4 PAGE 299 

/. , .,. .· : 
{J .., 'h ,!''/ ·' I' :::,-~ ·,· ·.~· · ·"' '/'' 1'$ 

:1 , ?N~../ . .' ·'' / .. / .;',"• .. '• ••' ·/ 
tf, ~· 't ', / • ,. by ;..: "/'711'f.• /'.' I 

.~· 

.0 

j-

20



~.;_. ~..:. 
11:' • ~ . .. ·---:-c-PLAT .. BOO.K 4 P.A-GE 30 

,i!-A."?P£ ('r'/ C:.&" 

# '&.· /k.,,,. ,,. -,l .. Ji! · h » ,/ ·d "I' l,,1J.-r 
.,..''lf'~'.!"r : fj, /t-11~ 1:-,(~·1) p1.,,.r~1. l/n, 
(. "fX,/1;1'Y, '"/(.1'1_;-/, / . 

--~ .,,(.~ ;~:::·p~· /-/)./:)7/ 

.)~it//.,/i.i'f C I .4'/'"£',,6r0:1;-

_,+f; -/e .· ./t;. v r~'r.,., 1 ;1_· r/ / ,,.//k .11A'J r~. :34'0 ' 
· "~ 11 '1-rr o · ·-., J:r,., //,;,,: · / ~ ,,,. /Mt: /t/I'/~ (f'; dt'tfi? Pi! 

,t4t;/11:::.cd' #rl 1 ~ 1" : /t/4' d. 
__ / 7.£:: ... _ _ .1J.1~.·«1a1 e. ..J:-o': ~ ... / / ,.., · 

/...!/. ~q -/f-~,: t y./f,,.J J~o • f"f.,Jc,/1 ;·(i,1.1. P.lf'.e. 
1· 'f?. C /<11. ~ "/t 1.: ~/lfu·£/J. • 

--· ~/: .~:.~. ···.· _/;-;.,,.,: //~"'/:.: 
" • "/ ' J JI · · I .,;_L_ J l/JYf)'''"/ <-y ' '· 4'. ·, · • ., X# ' n J 

W.1': ',1<} ltlfA~.U'< .1 /-'.f./~1t'. 

. . /I"" llilJ:-1~1/.f,,. 
J i~·'r1,-'( /// ./f·"", .P 1.~1./f'.··~u-· 
_,.~.;//!: .! .... c:··'!r'1" 'Mi l"'h .• 

t 
21



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 

www.putnamcountyga.us 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ABANDON A COUNTY ROAD 

 

Pursuant to O.C.G.A. Section 32-7-1 and 32-7-2, notice is given that Putnam County will 

consider the abandonment of a portion of Horton Drive. 

 

All that lot, tract and parcel of land, lying and being in Putnam County, Georgia, and being a 

strip of land 50 feet in width running from the northeastern boundary of Tract No. 3 listed 

on a plat recorded in Plat Book 11, page 52, N71° - 57’W for 50.0 feet to the Old Macon 

Circle SW.  Said 50 foot strip of land is further designated as being a portion of that 50 foot 

strip shown as “Proposed Road” on two (2) plats prepared by W. Henry Watterson, R. S. 

#398, dated July 19, 1971 and said 2 plats are recorded in Plat Book 4, pages 295 and 296, 

Clerk’s Office, Putnam County Superior Court and these plats by reference are made a part 

of this description. 

 

It appears the roadway proposed to be abandoned serves no public purpose and it is otherwise 

in the best interest of the County to abandon the same.  If abandoned, this road shall no 

longer be part of the county road system and the rights of the public in and to the section of 

road, as a public road shall cease. 

 

A public hearing will be held on November 6, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. in the Putnam County 

Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024 regarding the 

abandonment of this county road.  The public is invited to express any concerns regarding 

Putnam County’s determination. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 

observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility 

of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least 

three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the hearing to another time and 

place in the event the number of people in attendance at the hearing, including the Board of 

Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  Hearings will be 

conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 2-42 of the Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances. 

 

10/22/2020 & 10/29/2020 

22



11ft1 11:A r .s�n:r 

7) '"' £,INl1UiT.J 

-:f,/ ,,,.., r-lY • l!dl'7 

,u,c-1-- ro11r 
G114N-,.LI> 

,.,,.. ,,, r,_,,,,,, 

rxur11.J 1/S.-

tff>iftWtt> 

,ur 611U 11#4 
l"f· ,-� 

JIIUf'� .... 
,,,. ,,,

•r" tJOI#( s-11

,, 4 .. , 

,. _,,. ---�, ., . .,,.,. 
1-' �#<Cf ,.,,,,,,.,.?').., ·" 
.-. I•� ':_'.,.Y "/J . . 

� 
C'O<INTY JV<.tt� 

1-fu *�. 112
I' If ,.. "" ,,., � 

N 
T1lAl"JrT" Cl"IIIW 

Jl).f✓t:y 

lEGENO 

C,-, /ll'lttl��'f' •F (.,/F 

JAMEJ H. BOSWELL . .Jlt. 
�ourr:11 GMD .,,, Pr/n!IAltlCl>'11(1"Y �A 
:, •o. Ullo 1J1.nft1t:r ,.1,,,0 £on .w,."4• f # 
l"O O , /00 Joo jc,0 

Jt::-4,t Jl'Y rrcr

.AMfilCAN TE STING WOl!ATORIEJ,1/JC. 
LA70IV1TJN ,uo�tSIA At,,I I� 196., 

• T

Plat Book 11, Page 52 

N7 l 
0

- 57'W 50.0' 

EXHIBIT A
23



EXHIBIT B
24



25



26



File Attachments for Item:

8. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC)

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign revised final plat for Phoenix Crossing Phase II (staff-P&D)

27



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

October 20, 2020                                                                                                                                               __________________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, October 20, 2020 ◊ 7:00 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 

approximately 7:00 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

3. Invocation 

Pastor James Kilgore of New Life Outreach Christian Center gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (staff) 

County Manager Paul Van Haute led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

 

28



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

October 20, 2020                                                                                                                                               __________________ 

Zoning Public Hearing 
5. Request by Aaron Burgess, agent for James Mauldin, to rezone .53 acres (23,182 sq. ft.) from 

C-1 to C-2 at 841 Harmony Road [Map 102A, Part of Parcel 173, District 3]  

Nathan Hyde spoke in support of the rezoning request.  No one signed in to speak against this 

item. 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone .53 acres (23,182 sq. ft.) at 841 Harmony Road 

from C-1 to C-2 with the following conditions: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditional upon the 

resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County 

Code of Ordinances, (2) this parcel cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel and must be 

combined with the adjacent C-2 parcel (Map 102A, Parcel 168). 

Motion to approve the request by Aaron Burgess, agent for James Mauldin, to rezone .53 

acres (23,182 sq. ft.) at 841 Harmony Road from C-1 to C-2 with the following 

conditions: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditional upon the resurveying and recordation of 

the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of Ordinances, (2) this 

parcel cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel and must be combined with the 

adjacent C-2 parcel (Map 102A, Parcel 168). 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

None 

 

7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - October 2, 2020 Public Hearing and Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

October 20, 2020                                                                                                                                               __________________ 

8. Discussion and possible action on Revision of the General Guidelines for use of County 

Property (KI) 

Attorney Fleming reviewed the proposed changes to the General Guidelines for use of County 

Property. 

The following individuals offered comments: 

 Karen Henry Garrett commented on her previous uses and the first round of changes 

made to the guidelines. 

 Sarah Maslayak commented against the restrictions placed on the use of the courthouse 

and the $100 fee with no refund. 

 James Kilgore commented that he wants to make sure constitutional rights are not being 

violated. 

 Troy Daniel thanked the board for the proposed changes and commented that the protests 

he attended were peaceful and left clean. 

 David Erickson commented that he appreciates the board removing prohibitions but is 

still against the fees. 

 Richard Garrett distributed a handout and gave a power point presentation. 

 

Sheriff Howard Sills clarified that he has never prohibited anyone from speaking or engaging in 

events on the courthouse lawn, that is beyond his authority except when it comes to the operation 

of the courts or other constitutional offices and business in the courthouse.  He also explained 

that county ordinances can't be enforced in the city limits. 

 

Attorney Fleming reiterated that county ordinances are for the unincorporated areas of the county 

and that Georgia law requires the sheriff to protect and keep order in and around the courthouse, 

that is a statutory responsibility. 

 

Motion to approve the Revised General Guidelines for use of County Property with one 

change: increase the fee to $150 with $50 refundable upon a clean inspection report after 

the event. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of handout, presentation, and revised guidelines made a part of the minutes on minute 

book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

9. Appointments to the Eatonton-Putnam County Library Board (staff-CC) 

Chairman Webster explained that there are two vacancies on the Eatonton-Putnam County 

Library Board. 

Commissioner Sharp, seconded by Commissioner Brown, nominated Gail Farmer for 

appointment to the Eatonton-Putnam County Library Board. 

Commissioner Brown, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, nominated Patricia Hurt for 

appointment to the Eatonton-Putnam County Library Board. 

No further nominations were made. 

Chairman Webster called for the vote.  Commissioner Irvin voted for Gail Farmer and 

Patricia Hurt.  Commissioner Brown voted for Gail Farmer and Patricia 

Hurt.  Commissioner Sharp voted for Gail Farmer and Patricia Hurt.   

 

30



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

October 20, 2020                                                                                                                                               __________________ 

 

10. Consideration of renaming Tanglewood Road in District Three (BS) 

Motion to rename Tanglewood Road in District Three to Hazelwood Drive. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution and Quit Claim Deeds for the abandoned 

portion of Little-Minton Road (staff-CA) 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution and Quit Claim Deeds for the 

abandoned portion of Little-Minton Road. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

12. Authorization for staff to schedule a public hearing for proposed changes to the Putnam 

County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 66 (Zoning) (staff-P&D) 

Motion to authorize the staff to schedule a public hearing for proposed changes to the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 66 (Zoning) for December 4, 2020. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute distributed copies of a report that Putnam General Hospital submits 

to the state every year.  He advised that it is interesting data and asked the board to please look it 

over. 

 

14. County Attorney Report 

No report, but Attorney Fleming requested an Executive Session. 

 

15. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: thanked the County Manager for all the work done for the LPGA 

tournament which starts on October 22, 2020. 

 

Chairman Webster: reminded the commissioners that the County Manager had asked for the 

LMIG requests by tonight but that deadline is being extended until close of business 

tomorrow.  He also commented that the new parking lot looks real good and thanked to the 

Public Works department for cleaning up the piles of dirt so quickly. 

 

 

31



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

October 20, 2020                                                                                                                                               __________________ 

Executive Session 

16. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Litigation. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 8:05 p.m. 

 

 

17. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Motion to reopen the meeting and execute the Affidavit concerning the subject matter of 

the closed portion of the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
(Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting reopened at approximately 8:39 p.m. 

 

 

18. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

County Attorney Fleming reported that three legal matters were discussed with no final action 

taken. 

Closing 
19. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 8:40 p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

32



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the October 20, 2020 Executive 

Session are available for Commissioner review in the 

Clerk’s office. 
 

33

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


From: Kristine Tarrer <krmt@tarrerlaw.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 10:58:07 AM 
To: Lynn Butterworth <lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us> 
Subject: Board of Comm FW: 17211-Phoenix Crossing Phase 2  

  
Ms. Lynn: 

 

I do hope this finds you well. I just met with Ms. Jackson this morning on 

the attached plat. This was a subdivision plat that was approved in final 

form last spring. We need to submit a correcting plat to the BOC to add road 

names to the smaller cul de sacs. Apparently, they are causing issues with 

Mail and UPS and we need to have different road signs put up. So, Ms. Jackson 

said we need to get this back to the BOC. Can you tell me when is the 

earliest agenda we can get on? Can we make the 11-6 or the 11-17 meetings? 

 

I am getting everything Ms. Jackson has asked for today.  

 

Thanks,  

 

-Kristine R. Moore Tarrer 

706-484-9901 

 
It’s a Revision to Final Plat Phoenix Crossing Phase II 
Change Road Names Jack Court and Leslie Court.  

 

34

mailto:krmt@tarrerlaw.com
mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us


35



36



37



38



39



40



File Attachments for Item:

9. Approval of FY2020 Budget Amendment #2 (staff-Finance)

41



 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #2

Increase 

(Decrease) to 

Current Budget Total

General Fund Revenues:

Taxes: 1,187,045 

Title Ad Valorem Tax 480,830 

Intangible Tax 115,530 

Real Estate Transfer Tax 13,780 

Local Option Sales Tax 576,905 

License & Permits: (9,600)

Intergovernmental: 65,070 

Grant - CARES 12,345 

Grant - Transit 52,725 

Interest & Miscellaneous: 88,585 
Interest Earned 70,550 

Reimb - Damaged Property 12,050 

Miscellaneous 5,985 

Transfer From Other Funds (45,368)

Appropriation from Fund Balance (336,061)

                          Total General Fund Revenue Adjustment 949,671

General Fund Expenditures:

Board of Elections & Registration 2,355

General Administration (180,000)

Legal Services 39,100

Tax Assessor (27,625)

Public Buildings 84,195

Superior Court (47,000)

Fire Stations & Rescue 127,320

Ambulance Service (127,320)

Emergency Management (40,000)

Public Works 168,375

Indigent Burial 600

                      Total General Fund Expenditure Adjustment 0

Law Library Fund - Revenues 1,600

Law Library Fund - Expenditures 1,600

Jail Fund - Revenues 100

CARES Fund - Revenues 805,841

CARES Fund - Expenditures 805,841

1 of 2

42



 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #2

Increase 

(Decrease) to 

Current Budget Total

Special Service District Revenues:

Taxes: 99,320 

Real Property Tax 1,280 

Intangible Tax 8,220 

Real Estate Transfer Tax 585 

Alcoholic Beverage Tax 50,930 

Insurance Premium Tax 38,305 

License & Permits: 80,615

Alcoholic Beverage License 810

Business License 14,705

Business License Inspections County 75

Building Permit - County 57,420

EPD Permits 7,605

Charges for Services 13,200

Fines and Forfeitures 600

Interest & Miscellaneous 30,050

           Total Special Service District Revenue Adjustment 223,785

Special Service District Expenditures:

Special Service District - Animal Services (2,300)

Special Service District - Recyclables Collection 2,300

           Total Special Service District Expenditure Adjustment 0

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - Revenues 66,700

Local Maintenance Improvement Grant - Revenues 104,070

Solid Waste Fund - Revenues 46,620

Solid Waste Fund - Expenses 20,000

2 of 2

43



File Attachments for Item:

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Standard Utility Agreement/Actual Cost Utility Agreement-

Water Facilities (staff-CM)

44



 

Account No. – Class: 733005- 309 

Department ID: 4848010000 

Program No.: 4181401 

 STANDARD UTILITY AGREEMENT 
ACTUAL COST UTILITY AGREEMENT – Water  Facilities 

  
   GEORGIA PROJECT No.: N/A, Putnam County 
   G.D.O.T. P.I. No.:  0013615 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this _____________________________________, 
by and between the Department of Transportation, an agency of the State of Georgia, hereinafter 
called the DEPARTMENT, first party, and Putnam County Board of Commissioners, 
hereinafter called the LOCAL AGENCY, second party; and 
 

WITNESS that: 
 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT proposes under the above numbered project  to 
reconstruct State Route 24/US Route 441 from Eatonton Bypass to Morgan County Line in 
Putnam County, Georgia with its funds or with funds apportioned to the State by the Federal 
Highway Administration under Title 23, Highways, of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR); 
and  
 

WHEREAS, due to the construction of this project, it will become necessary to 
make certain adjustments of the existing water facilities of the LOCAL AGENCY in accordance 
with the detailed cost estimate for $157,870.00 prepared by the LOCAL AGENCY, attached 
hereto and made a part of this Agreement. The DEPARTMENT shall bear $142,083.00 or 
90.00% and the LOCAL AGENCY will bear $15,757.00 or 10.00%; and 
 

WHEREAS, said construction being the location and improvement of said road 
and the LOCAL AGENCY having its facilities presently located upon an easement with rights to 
install, operate and maintain such facilities on the rights-of-way thereof which were acquired 
prior to the acquisition of such rights-of-way by the DEPARTMENT; and 
 

WHEREAS, the location of said presently existing facilities and the proposed new 
location of such facilities are shown on the highway construction plans for this project, a copy of 
said plans in pertinent part being attached hereto, it is desired that the LOCAL AGENCY adjust 
its facilities within the existing easement or move to the new location as shown on said plans and 
relinquish such existing easement rights as it may have on the present location and accept in lieu 
thereof the easement rights hereinafter stated. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 
of the parties hereinafter set forth, it is agreed: 
 

1. It is specifically understood that the project number shown above is for the 
DEPARTMENT'S identification purposes only and may be subject to change by the 
DEPARTMENT.  In the event it becomes necessary for the DEPARTMENT to assign a different 
project number, the DEPARTMENT shall notify the LOCAL AGENCY of the new project 
designation. Such change in project designation shall have no affect whatsoever on any of the 
other terms of this Agreement. 

 
 
 

45



 

STANDARD UTILITY AGREEMENT 
 

ACTUAL COST UTILITY AGREEMENT – Water Facilities 
 

 
 2

2. The LOCAL AGENCY hereby relinquishes its existing easement rights on 
the present location as shown on said plans where its facilities are to be moved and accepts from 
the DEPARTMENT in lieu thereof the easement right to install, operate and maintain its 
facilities along and across such rights-of-way at the new location shown on said plans as a full 
and complete consideration for the relinquishment and extinguishment of its presently existing 
rights.  It is understood by the LOCAL AGENCY that the installation, operation and 
maintenance of its facilities shall be in accord with the current edition of the Utility 
Accommodation Policy and Standards Manual issued by the DEPARTMENT and Title 23 of the 
CFR, Chapter I, Subchapter G, Part 645, Subparts A and B.  If necessary to adjust such facilities 
on future construction and maintenance work, then the cost of the subsequent adjustment shall be 
eligible for reimbursement in the same manner as the initial adjustment expense covered by this 
Agreement. 
 

3. The LOCAL AGENCY, with its regular construction or maintenance 
crews and personnel, and at its standard schedule of wages and working hours, and working in 
accord with the terms of its agreements with such employees, shall make such changes in its 
facilities as may be necessary to permit the construction of the project and as may be required by 
the DEPARTMENT.  The LOCAL AGENCY may let to contract any portion of the work 
contemplated subject to prior approval according to the terms and conditions contained in Title 
23 of the CFR, Chapter I, Subchapter G, Part 645, Subparts A and B.  The LOCAL AGENCY 
agrees to obtain prior approval from the DEPARTMENT before authorizing any contract 
engineering or construction work by third parties, except as may be shown in the detailed cost 
estimate attached hereto. 
 
                      4.     In accordance with the BUY AMERICA requirements of the Federal 
regulations (23 U.S.C. 313 and 23 CFR 635.410) all manufacturing processes for steel and iron 
products furnished for permanent incorporation into the work on this project shall occur in the 
United States.  The only exception to this requirement is the production of pig iron and the 
processing, pelletizing and reduction of iron ore, which may occur in another country.  Other 
than these exceptions, all melting, rolling, extruding, machining, bending, grinding, drilling, 
coating, etc. must occur in the United States. 
 
                   a.            Products of steel include, but are not limited to, such products as structural 
steel piles, reinforcing steel, structural plate, steel culverts, guardrail, steel supports for signs, 
signals and luminaires.  Products of iron include, but are not limited to, such products as cast iron 
frames and grates and ductile iron pipe.  Coatings include, but are not limited to, the applications 
of epoxy, galvanizing and paint.  The coating material is not limited to this clause, only the 
application process. 
 
                   b.           A Certificate of Compliance shall be furnished for steel and iron products 
as part of the backup information with the billing.  The form for this certification entitled “Buy 
America Certificate of Compliance” is attached to this agreement and shall be provided to the 
DEPARTMENT upon completion of 80% of the agreement amount.  Records to be maintained 
by the RAILROAD/UTILITIES and the DEPARTMENT for this certification shall include a 
signed mill test report and/or a signed certification by a supplier, distributor, fabricator, or 
manufacturer that has handled the steel or iron product affirming that every process, including 
the application of a coating, performed on the steel or iron product has been carried out in the 
United States of America, except as allowed by this Section.  The lack of these certifications will 

46



 

STANDARD UTILITY AGREEMENT 
 

ACTUAL COST UTILITY AGREEMENT – Water Facilities 
 

 
 3

be justification for rejection of the steel and/or iron product or nonpayment of the work.  
 
                       c. The requirements of said law and regulations do not prevent the use of 
miscellaneous steel or iron components, subcomponents and hardware necessary to encase, 
assemble and construct the above products, manufactured products that are not predominantly 
steel or iron or a minimal use of foreign steel and iron materials if the cost of such materials used 
does not exceed one-tenth of one percent (0.1%) of the total contract price or $2,500.00, 
whichever is greater. 
 

5. The DEPARTMENT shall pay monthly bills promptly upon receipt and 
verification thereof by the DEPARTMENT.  Upon completion of the work the LOCAL 
AGENCY shall submit one final bill to the DEPARTMENT and the DEPARTMENT shall make 
a conditional final payment promptly upon verification of the final bill by the DEPARTMENT.  
The total liability of the DEPARTMENT shall not exceed the reimbursable cost of the work as 
ascertained by computing the items of cost as set forth in the aforesaid Title 23 of the CFR, 
Chapter I, Subchapter G, Part 645, Subparts A and B.  At any time within three years after the 
date of the conditional final payment the DEPARTMENT may audit the cost records and 
accounts of the LOCAL AGENCY pertaining to this project and will bill the LOCAL AGENCY 
any amount of any unallowable expenditure made in the conditional final payment of this 
Agreement or, if no unallowable expenditure is found, notify the LOCAL AGENCY of that fact 
in writing.  If the LOCAL AGENCY does not pay any such bill within thirty days of receipt of 
the bill from the DEPARTMENT, the DEPARTMENT may set-off the amount of such bill 
against the amounts owed the LOCAL AGENCY on any then-current agreement between the 
LOCAL AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT.  For audit purposes, the cost records and accounts 
of the LOCAL AGENCY pertaining to this project shall be made available to the representatives 
of the DEPARTMENT or the Federal Highway Administration at the General Office of the 
LOCAL AGENCY during the progress of the work and for a period of not less than three years 
from the date conditional final payment has been received by the LOCAL AGENCY. 
 

6. The LOCAL AGENCY expressly agrees that the DEPARTMENT may 
set-off against the net payments provided for herein an amount equal to that amount which has 
been identified by either a State or Federal audit as unallowable expenditure in any agreement 
between the LOCAL AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT on which a conditional final payment 
has been made. 
 

7. The DEPARTMENT shall not be bound to pay any amount in excess of 
the reimbursable portion of the detailed cost estimate attached hereto, nor for any items of work 
not provided for in the detailed cost estimate.  In the event it is determined that a change in the 
work to be performed by the LOCAL AGENCY shall be required or that an increase in cost 
anticipated will be incurred by the LOCAL AGENCY, a written change or extra work order 
approved by the DEPARTMENT will be required as provided in Title 23 of the CFR, Chapter I, 
Subchapter G, Part 645, Subparts A and B.  The amount of the detailed cost estimate attached 
hereto will be allotted from available funds and written notice given to the LOCAL AGENCY by 
the DEPARTMENT before the LOCAL AGENCY is authorized to proceed with the work to be 
performed by the LOCAL AGENCY under this Agreement. 
 

 
8. The DEPARTMENT shall not be liable for payment of any bill received 

47



 

STANDARD UTILITY AGREEMENT 
 

ACTUAL COST UTILITY AGREEMENT – Water Facilities 
 

 
 4

more than twelve (12) months after all work under this Agreement is completed unless the 
LOCAL AGENCY and DEPARTMENT have agreed in advance to an extension of the billing 
period in writing.  Unless an extension of the billing period has been agreed, the 
DEPARTMENT may consider payment made up to one year following completion of the work 
to be final. 
 

9. It is mutually agreed that the final cost of the changes in the facilities of 
the LOCAL AGENCY covered by the detailed cost estimate shall be borne by the LOCAL 
AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT on the percentage basis indicated in said estimate. 
 

10. The LOCAL AGENCY shall be responsible for providing signing and 
other traffic control measures during construction in accordance with the Manual on Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices, current edition, and as required by the DEPARTMENT'S engineer. 
 

11. The DEPARTMENT agrees to notify the LOCAL AGENCY when the 
highway construction contract is awarded and furnish the name of the contractor who will 
perform the highway work.  The LOCAL AGENCY agrees to plan with the DEPARTMENT'S 
contractor a schedule of operations which shall clearly set forth at which stage of the Contractor's 
operations the LOCAL AGENCY will need to perform its removal, relocation and adjustment 
work. Further, the work covered under this Agreement shall be completed in conjunction with 
the approved Work Plan submitted by the LOCAL AGENCY and no later than the overall 
completion date as indicated in the construction agreement entered into between the 
DEPARTMENT and the lowest responsive bidder.  The DEPARTMENT will notify the LOCAL 
AGENCY in writing of this final completion date. 

 
12. Pursuant to O.C.G.A. Sec. 50-5-85, LOCAL AGENCY hereby certifies 

that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees that for the duration of this contract, it will not 
engage in a boycott of Israel. 

  
13. It is mutually agreed between the parties hereto that this document shall be 

deemed to have been executed in the Fulton County, Georgia and that all questions of 
interpretation and construction shall be governed by the laws of the State of Georgia. 
 

14. The covenants herein contained shall, except as otherwise provided, 
accrue to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 
                       15.       This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so 
executed shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts shall together constitute but one and 
the same Agreement. The parties shall be entitled to sign and transmit an electronic signature of this 
Agreement (whether by facsimile, PDF or other email transmission), which signature shall be binding on 
the party whose name is contained therein. Any party providing an electronic signature agrees to 
promptly execute and deliver to the other parties an original signed Agreement upon request.

48



 

STANDARD UTILITY AGREEMENT 
 

ACTUAL COST UTILITY AGREEMENT – Water Facilities 
 

 
 5

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and affixed their 
seals, caused this Agreement to be executed in three counterparts, each to be considered as an 
original by their authorized representative the day and date hereinabove written. 
 
                                                              PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   
 
                                                                                                               
 
BY: _____________________________    BY: ______________________________ 
          NOTARY PUBLIC       (SEAL)                           CHAIRMAN 
 
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED  
BEFORE ME THIS _______ DAY     
OF _____________, 20_______,       
My commission expires: 
 
Signed on behalf PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS pursuant to resolution dated 
___________________. 
 
************************************ 
FEIN ______________________________                   BY: ______________________________ 
************************************      SECRETARY/ASST. SECRETARY 
                   (OFFICIAL SEAL) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED:     ACCEPTED: 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
BY: ___________________________________ 
       STATE UTILITIES ADMINISTRATOR 

BY: ______________________________ 
         COMMISSIONER 
 

PROJECT No.: N/A Signed, sealed and delivered this ________ 
COUNTY:        PUTNAM  day of ____________________, 20______, 
P.I. No.: 0013615  
DATE:             October 21, 2020 DW 
 
 (OFFICIAL SEAL OF THE DEPARTMENT) 
I attest that the seal imprinted herein is the Official Seal of the DEPARTMENT. 
 

BY: ______________________________ 
                      TREASURER 
(OFFICIAL CUSTODIAN OF THE SEAL) 
 
 
 

49



 

STANDARD UTILITY AGREEMENT 
 

ACTUAL COST UTILITY AGREEMENT – Water Facilities 
 

 
 6

RESOLUTION 
 
 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the CHAIRMAN and Board of the PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD 

OF COMMISSIONERS , and it is hereby resolved, that the foregoing attached Agreement, 

relative to project P.I. No. 0013615 to reconstruct State Route 24/US Route 441 from 

Eatonton Bypass to Morgan County Line in Putnam County, Georgia in and that Mr. Billy 

Webster as Chairman of the Putnam County Board of Commissioners and 

_________________________, as Clerk/Secretary, be and they are, thereby authorized and 

directed to execute the same for and in behalf of said by the CHAIRMAN of PUTNAM 

COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS. 

 
Passed and adopted, this the _____________ day of __________________, 20___. 

 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________   BY:______________________________ 
   CITY CLERK/SECRETARY                                  CHAIRMAN 
    
 
STATE OF GEORGIA, 
 
PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

I ____________________________ , as Clerk/Secretary, do hereby certify that I am 

custodian of the books and records of the same, and that the above and foregoing copy of the 

original is now on file in my office, and was passed by the CHAIRMAN of PUTNAM 

COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS. WITNESS my hand and official signature, this the 

________ day of _______________, 

 
20_________. 

BY:__________________________________ 
     CITY CLERK/SECRETARY 
 

50



Original 5/17/2013 

Revised 7/26/2013 
 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION BUY AMERICA 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 
 

 
 

Date   _, 20   
 

WE,     

(UTILITY/RAILROAD OWNER) 

Address:    
 
 

Hereby certify that we are in compliance with the “Buy America” requirements of the Federal 
regulations 23 U.S.C. 313 and 23 CFR 635.410 of this project. 

 

P.I. No. 0013615- SR 24 SR 24/US 441 FROM EATONTON BYPASS TO MORGAN COUNTY 
LINE IN PUTNAM COUNTY 
 
As required, we will maintain all records and documents pertinent to the Buy America requirement, 

at the address given above, for not less than 3 years from the date of project completion and 

acceptance, if we do not provide the records and documents during invoicing. If all records and 

documents pertinent to the Buy America requirement are delivered during invoicing, then we will 

maintain all records and documents pertinent to the Buy America requirement for not less than three 

(3) years from the date conditional final payment has been received by the COMPANY. These files 

will be available for inspection and verification by the Department and/or FHWA. 

 
We further certify that the total value of foreign steel as described in the Buy America requirements 

for this project does not exceed one-tenth of one percent (0.1%) of the total contract price or 

$2,500.00, whichever is greater. 
 
 
 

Signed by       Title     
(Officer of Organization) 

 
 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this   day of   _,   . 
 
 

 
Notary Public/Justice of the Peace 

My Commission Expires: 

51



Rev. 11/01/15 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT AFFIDAVIT 

 
 

Contractor’s Name: PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Solicitation/Contract No./ Call No. 

or Project Description: 

N/A, PI # 0013615, PUTNAM COUNTY 
SR 24/US 441 FROM EATONTON BYPASS TO MORGAN 
COUNTY LINE  IN PUTNAM COUNTY 

 

CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT 

 
By executing this affidavit, the undersigned contractor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, stating 

affirmatively that the individual, entity or corporation which is engaged in the physical performance of services on behalf of the 

Georgia Department of Transportation has registered with, is authorized to use and uses the federal work authorization program 

commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in accordance with the  applicable  provisions  and 

deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91. 

 
Furthermore, the undersigned contractor will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout the 

contract period and the undersigned contractor will contract for the physical performance of services in satisfaction of such 

contract only with subcontractors who present an affidavit to the contractor with the information required by O.C.G.A. § 13-10- 

91(b).   Contractor  hereby attests  that  its  federal  work  authorization  user  identification  number  and  date of 

authorization are as follows: 
 

 
  

Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number Date of Authorization 
(EEV/E-Verify Company Identification Number) 

 

 
 

Name of Contractor 

 
I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
foregoing is true and correct 

 
 

 

 

Printed Name (of Authorized Officer or Agent of Contractor) Title (of Authorized Officer or Agent of Contractor) 
 

  
 

Signature (of Authorized Officer or Agent) Date Signed 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME ON THIS THE         

  DAY OF  , 20_   

 
 

 

Notary Public 
 

My Commission Expires:    

[NOTARY SEAL] 

 

 

52



Russell R. McMurry, P.E., Commissioner 
One Georgia Center  
600 West Peachtree NW  
Atlanta, GA 30308 

 (404) 631-1990 Main Office 
 

 
 

 
 

October 21, 2020 
 
 

Mr. Billy Webster 
Chairman 
Putnam County Board of Commissioners 
117 Putnam Drive 
Eatonton, GA 31024 
 
 
Subject:           PI No. 0013615, Putnam County 
                        Actual Cost Agreement Undated – Water Facilities

 
 

Dear Mr. Webster:     
 
Attached is an electronic counterpart of an undated Actual Cost Utility Agreement between the Putnam 
County Board of Commissioners and the Georgia Department of Transportation supported by an 
estimate for $157,870.00 of which the Department will bear $142,083.00 or 90% and the Putnam 
County Board of Commissioners shall bear 10% or $15,787.00.  The Agreement covers the adjustment 
of the Putnam County Board of Commissioners water facilities in conflict with the above project.  The 
Agreement will be dated upon execution on behalf of the Department.   
 
If the attached Agreement meets with your approval, please handle for execution on behalf of the 
Putnam County Board of Commissioners and return three (3) counterparts to the State of Georgia, 
Office of Utilities, One Georgia Center, 600 West Peachtree Street, 10th Floor, Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
for execution on behalf of the Department.  In this connection, be sure to have a notary public sign the 
Agreements.  Please be certain that the notary public’s seal is affixed alongside the signature.  The 
Official Seal of the Putnam County Board of Commissioners is required to be affixed to each 
counterpart in compliance with instructions from our Attorney General’s Office. 
 
Also, please provide Putnam County Board of Commissioners’ Federal Employee Identification Number 
in the blank shown on page 5 of the Agreement.  This number is needed in order for the Department to 
make payment on your bill when it is submitted. 
 
If you have any questions or need further information, please contact David Woodcox at 404-347-0605 or 
by e-mail at dwoodcox@dot.ga.gov. Please send correspondence by mail addressed to State of Georgia, 
Office of Utilities, One Georgia Center, 600 West Peachtree Street, 10th Floor, Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
for execution on behalf of the Department. 
 
 
 

53



Mr. Billy Webster 
PI No. 0013615, Putnam County 
Actual Cost Agreement –Water Facilities 
October 21, 2020; Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Very truly yours, 

 

 
 
Shajan Joseph, P.E. 
Assistant State Utilities Administrator 
 
For: Patrick Allen, P.E. 
State Utilities Administrator 
 
 
PA: SPJ: MGC: DW 

 
Attachments 

 
 

cc: Corbett Reynolds, District 2 Engineer 
      Jamie Lindsey, District 2 Utilities Manager 
      Abdulvahid Munshi, Utility Coordinator 
      Danah Bonny, Utilities Preconstruction Specialist 
 
 
            

54



File Attachments for Item:

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign Georgia Department of Transportation Request for Traffic Signal 

(BW)

55



D.O.T. 401 

8-98 

 

 

Dist r ibu t ion :  

Whi t e  –  Appl i can t  

Yel lo w –  S t a te  Tra ffi c  En gineer  

P ink –  Dis t r ic t  Tra ff ic  En gineer  

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTTION 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 
REQUEST FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL  

 

To the Georgia Department o f Transportat ion:  

 

The Board  of  Commissioners  in Putnam County hereby request  approval  for  the use  o f a  tra ff ic  

signal  at  the loca tion descr ibed be lo w :  

 

LOCATION 

 

Local  Stree t  names:  Lake Oconee Parkway  at  Scott  Road  

 

Sta te  Route Numbers :  44 at  Sco tt  Road  

 

TYPE SIGNAL 

 

 Stop  and Go      F lashing Beacon     School  Beacon      Other   

 

CONDITIONS OF APPLICATION AND STANDARDS OF OPERATION  

 

In  the  event  tha t  the  Georgia Department  o f Transportat ion author izes the  use o f  a  tra ff ic  signal  

at  the  above loca tion,  the undersigned agrees to  par t icipate  in the  costs to  purchase and ins ta l l  

the signal .   This level  o f  par t icipa tion wi l l  be determined after  a  study of the locat ion has been 

comple ted.   The  s ignal  must  be ins ta l led to  the  Depar tment’s stan dards and  conform wi th the 

authoriza t ion issued by the Depar tment and the provis ions set  for th therein.  

 

COST OF OPERATION  

 

The ful l  and entire  costs  of the e lec tr ic  energy and telephone service used to  opera te  the signal  

sha ll  be  at  the expense of  the  app licant  wi thout  any cost  to  the  Georgia Department  o f  

Transporta t ion.   The  applicant  understands that  the  Depar tment may ask for  par t ic ipat ion in  

the cost  for  the purchase ,  insta l lat ion and maintenance of the s ignal  i f  approved .  

 

INSPECTION AND APPROVAL  

 

The instal la t ion,  maintenance and  opera t ion of  sa id  signal  sha ll  be subject  a t  a l l  t imes  to  

inspect ion and approval  by a duly author ized engineer  o f the Georgia Department o f  

Transporta t ion.  

RIGHT TO REVOKE 

 

The Georgia  Department  of Transportat ion reserves the r ight  to  revoke the approval  should i t  

for  any reason des ire  to  do so,  by giving the applicant  thir ty (30)  days  wr i t ten not ice ,  and  in  

that  event ,  the app licant  agrees to  remove said  s ignal  from said r ight -o f-way a t  i t s  own expense 

or  al low i t  to  be  re moved by the Department.  

 

This appl ica t ion i s  hereby submitted and a l l  o f the terms and condit ions  are hereby agreed to .   

The undersigned are duly author ized to  execute this ins trument.  

 

      This the  _______ day of  ________________ 20 20  

 

Attest :       By:   _____________________________________  

 

___________________________________ Tit le :  Chai rman 

                     Clerk  

Do Not  Wr i te  In  This  Space  

 

Appl icat ion  No.  ___________________  

 

Permi t  No.________________________  

56



File Attachments for Item:

12. Surplus Fixed Asset for Sale (staff-CM)

57



58



59



File No. 20LPCBC

APPRAISAL OF

THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT

108 Jackson ST

Eatonton, GA  31024

as of

October 29, 2020

for

Putnam County Board of Commissioners
c/o pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us
Eatonton,, GA
31024

by

Mosley Appraisal Service

107A Old Montgomeryville RD NW
Milledgeville, GA 31061

60

mailto:pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us


Mosley Appraisal Service
107A Old Montgomeryville RD NW
Milledgeville, GA 31061
478-453-3528

October 30, 2020

Putnam County Board of Commissioners
c/o pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us
Eatonton,, GA
31024

Property - 108 Jackson ST
Eatonton, GA  31024

Client   - Putnam County Board of Commissioners
File No. - 20LPCBC
Case No. -

Dear  :

In accordance with your request ,  I  have prepared an appraisal  of  the real  property located at  108
Jackson ST, Eatonton,  GA.

The purpose of the appraisal  is  to provide an opinion of the market  value of the property
descr ibed in  the body of  this  report .

Enclosed, please find the report which describes certain data gathered during our investigation of
the property.   The methods of approach and reasoning in the valuation of the various physical
and economic factors of the subject property are contained in this report .

An inspection of the property and a study of pert inent factors,  including valuation trends and an
ana lysis  of  neighborhood da ta,  led the appraiser to the conclusion tha t  the market  value,  as of
October 29 ,  2020 is  :

$5,000

The opinion of  value expressed in  this  report  is  cont ingent  upon the Limit ing Condit ions
attached to this  report .

It  has been a p leasure to assist  you.   If  I  may be of further service to you in the future,  please let
me know.

Respectfully submitted,

Mosley Appraisal Service

William H. Mosley
GA Certification #CR543

61

mailto:pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us


ID
E

N
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

N
E

IG
H

B
O

R
H

O
O

D
S

IT
E

M
A

R
K

E
T

 D
A

T
A

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS
R

E
C

O
N

C
IL

IA
T

IO
N

LAND APPRAISAL REPORT File No.

Owner Census Tract Map Reference

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Legal Description

Sale Price  $ Property Rights AppraisedDate of Sale Fee Leasehold De Minimis PUD

Actual Real Estate Taxes  $ (yr.)

Client Address

Occupant Appraiser Instructions to Appraiser

Intended User: Intended Use:

Location Urban Suburban Rural Good Avg. Fair Poor

Built Up Over 75% 25% to 75% Under 25% Employment Stability

Growth Rate Rapid Steady SlowFully Dev. Convenience to Employment

Property Values Increasing Stable Declining Convenience to Shopping

Demand/Supply Shortage In Balance Over Supply Convenience to Schools

Marketing Time Under 3 Mos. 4-6 Mos. Over 6 Mos. Adequacy of Public Transportation

Recreational FacilitiesPresent Land Use % 1 Family % 2-4 Fam % Apts. % Condo % Commercial

Adequacy of Utilities% Industrial % Vacant %

Property CompatibilityChange in Present Land Use Not Likely Likely (*) Taking Place (*)

Protection from Detrimental Conditions(*) From To

Police and Fire ProtectionPredominant Occupancy Owner Tenant % Vacant

General Appearance of PropertiesSingle Family Price Range $ to $ Predominant Value $

Appeal to MarketSingle Family Age yrs. to yrs. Predominant Age yrs.

Comments including those factors, favorable or unfavorable, affecting marketability (e.g. public parks, schools, noise)

Dimensions = Corner Lot

Zoning Classification Present improvements do do not conform to zoning regulations

Highest and best use: Present use Other (specify)

Public Other (Describe) OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTS Topo

Elec. SizeStreet Access: Public Private

Gas ShapeSurface

Water ViewMaintenance: Public Private

San. Sewer DrainageStorm Sewer Curb/Gutter

Underground Elect. & Tel. Sidewalk Street Lights Is the property located in a HUD Identified Special Flood Hazard Area? No Yes

Comments (favorable or unfavorable including any apparent adverse easements, encroachments or other adverse conditions)

The undersigned has recited three recent sales of properties most similar and proximate to subject and has considered these in the market analysis. The description includes a dollar
adjustment, reflecting market reaction to those items of significant variation between the subject and comparable properties. If a significant item in the comparable property is superior to, or
more favorable than, the subject property, a minus (-) adjustment is made, thus reducing the indicated value of subject; if a significant item in the comparable is inferior to, or less favorable
than, the subject property, a plus (+) adjustment is made, thus increasing the indicated value of the subject.

For the Market Data Analysis See grid below. See narrative attachment.

ITEM Subject Property COMPARABLE NO. 1 COMPARABLE NO. 2 COMPARABLE NO. 3

Address

Proximity to Subj.

Sales Price $ $ $ $

Price $ $ $ $

Data Source

Date of Sale and DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION + (-) $
Adjustment DESCRIPTION + (-) $

Adjustment DESCRIPTION + (-) $
Adjustment

Time Adjustment

Location

Site/View

Site Area

Sales or Financing
Concessions

Net Adj. (Total) Plus Minus $ Plus Minus $ Plus Minus $

Indicated Value
of Subject $ $ $

Comments on Market Data:

Comments and Conditions of Appraisal:

Final Reconciliation:

I ESTIMATE THE MARKET VALUE, AS DEFINED, OF SUBJECT PROPERTY AS OF to be $,

20LPCBC
Putnam County Board of Commissioners 9602.02 E006

108 Jackson ST
Eatonton Putnam GA 31024

Described in DB 878, Pg 183, as shown in PB 2, pg 198, Putnam County deed records
X

269
Putnam County Board of Commissioners c/o pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us, Eatonton,, GA, 31024
Vacant William H. Mosley Form opinion of current market value

Putnam County Board of Commissioners possible market sale
X

X X
X X
X X
X X

X N O N E
90 X

100.00 10 X
X X

X
X X

25 150 75 X
20 120 50 X

Older neighborhood is located
in the City Limits of Eatonton about 4 b locks Southwest  of  the Courthouse downtown.  There is  a variety of styles,  s izes
and ages of dwellings in the vicinity of the subject .  The general  market  area includes all  of  the propert ies in similar
market  areas with the City Limits.

Irregular - see attached plat 4661 sf
R-1 X

X as a residential building site
Gently Sloping to rear

X X Average in Area
X Asphalt Rectangular
X X Typical/Street
X Appears to be adequate

X
The site is  gently sloping to the

rear and is  part ially grassed.  There is  a d ilapidated home on the lot  that   is  a  detriment to the lot  value.  No adverse site
factors were observed and none are known of by the appraiser.

X

108 Jackson ST 219 Thompkins St 102 Spruce Ln 701 Church St
Eatonton, GA  31024 Eatonton, GA 31024 Eatonton, GA 31024 Eatonton, GA 31024

0.16 miles S 0.35 miles W 0.60 miles W
6,500 7,500 7,500

Physical Inspection RideBy Inspect/Deed Record RideBy Inspect/Deed Record RideBy Inspect/Deed Record

10/29/2020 s05/20;Unk s08/20;Unk s10/19;Unk
Suburban Suburban Suburban Suburban
Typical/Street Typical/Street Typical/Street Typical/Street
4661 sf 6970 sf 0 28314 sf 0 16553 sf 0
Dilapidated House Cleared Lot -2,500 Cleared =1Lot -2,000 Cleared Lot -2,500

*House shown on lot
was after lot purchase

Cash to Seller Cash to Seller Cash to Seller Cash to Seller
None None None None

X -2,500 X -2,000 X -2,500
Gross 38.5% Gross 26.7% Gross 33.3%
Net -38.5% 4,000 Net -26.7% 5,500 Net -33.3% 5,000

The comparable sales considered in this  report  are in the same neighborhood or market  area as the
subject and they have s imila rit ies to the subject in utilit ies available, highest and best use and all have s imila r appeal to
this loca l market .

Estimate of $2,500 to clear the dilapidate house from this lot .   The comparable lot  sales
indicate a value of $6,500 to $7,500 for the lot  if  it  were vacant and available to be used.   The final  value esimate for
the subject lot is reduced because the buyer will have to remove the exist ing s tructure on the lot.

Neither the cost nor the income approaches to value were considered.  These approaches are not
usually applicable on vacant lots .    The market  approach was given exclusive consideration in est imating the vacant
land 's  value.

October 29 2020 5,000
Mosley Appraisal Service

62

mailto:pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us


File No.

This appraisal report is subject to the scope of work, intended use, intended user, definition of market value, statement of
assumptions and limiting conditions, and certifications. The appraiser may expand the scope of work to include any additional
research or analysis necessary based on the complexity of this appraisal assignment.

SCOPE OF WORK: The scope of work for this appraisal is defined by the complexity of this appraisal assignment and the
reporting requirements of this appraisal report form, including the following definition of market value, statement of
assumptions and limiting conditions, and certifications. The appraiser must, at a minimum: (1) perform a complete visual
inspection of the subject property, (2) inspect the neighborhood, (3) inspect each of the comparable sales from at least the street,
(4) research, verify, and analyze data from reliable public and/or private sources, and (5) report his or her analysis, opinions, and
conclusions in this appraisal report.

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open
market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably and assuming
the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and
the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: (1) buyer and seller are typically motivated; (2) both
parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he or she considers his or her own best interest; (3) a
reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; (4) payment is made in terms of cash in U. S. dollars or in terms
of financial arrangements comparable thereto; and (5) the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold
unaffected by special or creative financing or sales concessions* granted by anyone associated with the sale.

*Adjustments to the comparables must be made for special or creative financing or sales concessions. No adjustments are
necessary for those costs which are normally paid by sellers as a result of tradition or law in a market area; these costs are
readily identifiable since the seller pays these costs in virtually all sales transactions. Special or creative financing
adjustments can be made to the comparable property by comparisons to financing terms offered by a third party institutional
lender that is not already involved in the property or transaction. Any adjustment should not be calculated on a mechanical
dollar for dollar cost of the financing or concession but the dollar amount of any adjustment should approximate the market's
reaction to the financing or concessions based on the appraiser's judgment.

STATEMENT OF ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS: The appraiser's certification in this report is
subject to the following assumptions and limiting conditions:

1. The appraiser will not be responsible for matters of a legal nature that affect either the property being appraised or the title
to it, except for information that he or she became aware of during the research involved in performing this appraisal. The
appraiser assumes that the title is good and marketable and will not render any opinions about the title.

2. The appraiser has examined the available flood maps that are provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(or other data sources) and has noted in this appraisal report whether any portion of the subject site is located in an
identified Special Flood Hazard Area. Because the appraiser is not a surveyor, he or she makes no guarantees, express or
implied, regarding this determination.

3. The appraiser will not give testimony or appear in court because he or she made an appraisal of the property in question,
unless specific arrangements to do so have been made beforehand, or as otherwise required by law.

4. The appraiser has noted in this appraisal report any adverse conditions (such as the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic
substances, etc.) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that he or she became aware of during the research
involved in performing this appraisal. Unless otherwise stated in this appraisal report, the appraiser has no knowledge of any hidden
or unapparent deficiencies or adverse conditions of the property (such as, but not limited to, the presence of hazardous wastes,
toxic substances, adverse environmental conditions, etc.) that would make the property less valuable, and has assumed that there
are no such conditions and makes no guarantees or warranties, express or implied. The appraiser will not be responsible for any
such conditions that do exist or for any engineering or testing that might be required to discover whether such conditions exist.
Because the appraiser is not an expert in the field of environmental hazards, this appraisal report must not be considered as
an environmental assessment of the property.

Page 2 of 4

20LPCBC

Mosley Appraisal Service

63



File No.

APPRAISER’S CERTIFICATION: The Appraiser certifies and agrees that:

1. I have, at a minimum, developed and reported this appraisal in accordance with the scope of work requirements stated in
this appraisal report.

2. I performed a complete visual inspection of the subject property.

3. I performed this appraisal in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice that were adopted and promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and that were in
place at the time this appraisal report was prepared.

4. I developed my opinion of the market value of the real property that is the subject of this report based on the sales
comparison approach to value. I have adequate comparable market data to develop a reliable sales comparison approach
for this appraisal assignment. I further certify that I considered the cost and income approaches to value but did not develop
them, unless otherwise indicated in this report.

5. I researched, verified, analyzed, and reported on any current agreement for sale for the subject property, any offering for
sale of the subject property in the twelve months prior to the effective date of this appraisal, and the prior sales of the subject
property for a minimum of three years prior to the effective date of this appraisal, unless otherwise indicated in this report.

6. I researched, verified, analyzed, and reported on the prior sales of the comparable sales for a minimum of one year prior
to the date of sale of the comparable sale, unless otherwise indicated in this report.

7. I selected and used comparable sales that are locationally, physically, and functionally the most similar to the subject property.

8. I have reported adjustments to the comparable sales that reflect the market's reaction to the differences between the subject
property and the comparable sales.

9. I verified, from a disinterested source, all information in this report that was provided by parties who have a financial interest in
the sale of the subject property.

10. I have knowledge and experience in appraising this type of property in this market area.

11. I am aware of, and have access to, the necessary and appropriate public and private data sources, such as multiple listing
services, tax assessment records, public land records and other such data sources for the area in which the property is located.

12. I obtained the information, estimates, and opinions furnished by other parties and expressed in this appraisal report from
reliable sources that I believe to be true and correct.

13. I have taken into consideration the factors that have an impact on value with respect to the subject neighborhood, subject
property, and the proximity of the subject property to adverse influences in the development of my opinion of market value. I
have noted in this appraisal report any adverse conditions (such as, the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic substances,
adverse environmental conditions, etc.) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that I became aware of during
the research involved in performing this appraisal. I have considered these adverse conditions in my analysis of the property value,
and have reported on the effect of the conditions on the value and marketability of the subject property.

14. I have not knowingly withheld any significant information from this appraisal report and, to the best of my knowledge, all
statements and information in this appraisal report are true and correct.

15. I stated in this appraisal report my own personal, unbiased, and professional analysis, opinions, and conclusions, which
are subject only to the assumptions and limiting conditions in this appraisal report.

16. I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, and I have no present or
prospective personal interest or bias with respect to the participants in the transaction. I did not base, either partially or
completely, my analysis and/or opinion of market value in this appraisal report on the race, color, religion, sex, age, marital
status, handicap, familial status, or national origin of either the prospective owners or occupants of the subject property or of the
present owners or occupants of the properties in the vicinity of the subject property or on any other basis prohibited by law.

17. My employment and/or compensation for performing this appraisal or any future or anticipated appraisals was not conditioned
on any agreement or understanding, written or otherwise, that I would report (or present analysis supporting) a predetermined specific
value, a predetermined minimum value, a range or direction in value, a value that favors the cause of any party, or the attainment of a
specific result or occurrence of a specific subsequent event.

18. I personally prepared all conclusions and opinions about the real estate that were set forth in this appraisal report. If I relied on
significant real property appraisal assistance from any individual or individuals in the performance of this appraisal or the
preparation of this appraisal report, I have named such individual(s) and disclosed the specific tasks performed in this appraisal report.
I certify that any individual so named is qualified to perform the tasks. I have not authorized anyone to make a change to any item
in this appraisal report; therefore, any change made to this appraisal is unauthorized and I will take no responsibility for it.

19. I identified the client in this appraisal report who is the individual, organization, or agent for the organization that
ordered and will receive this appraisal report.

20. I am aware that any disclosure or distribution of this appraisal report by me or the client may be subject to certain
laws and regulations. Further, I am also subject to the provisions of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
that pertain to disclosure or distribution by me.

21. If this appraisal report was transmitted as an “electronic record” containing my “electronic signature,” as those terms are
defined in applicable federal and/or state laws (excluding audio and video recordings), or a facsimile transmission of this
appraisal report containing a copy or representation of my signature, the appraisal report shall be as effective, enforceable and
valid as if a paper version of this appraisal report were delivered containing my original hand written signature.

Page 3 of 4

20LPCBC

Mosley Appraisal Service

64



File No.

SUPERVISORY APPRAISER’S CERTIFICATION: The Supervisory Appraiser certifies and agrees that:

1. I directly supervised the appraiser for this appraisal assignment, have read the appraisal report, and agree with the appraiser's
analysis, opinions, statements, conclusions, and the appraiser's certification.

2. I accept full responsibility for the contents of this appraisal report including, but not limited to, the appraiser's analysis, opinions,
statements, conclusions, and the appraiser's certification.

3. The appraiser identified in this appraisal report is either a sub-contractor or an employee of the supervisory appraiser (or the
appraisal firm), is qualified to perform this appraisal, and is acceptable to perform this appraisal under the applicable state law.

4. This appraisal report complies with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice that were adopted and
promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and that were in place at the time this appraisal
report was prepared.

5. If this appraisal report was transmitted as an “electronic record” containing my “electronic signature,” as those terms are
defined in applicable federal and/or state laws (excluding audio and video recordings), or a facsimile transmission of this
appraisal report containing a copy or representation of my signature, the appraisal report shall be as effective, enforceable and
valid as if a paper version of this appraisal report were delivered containing my original hand written signature.

APPRAISER SUPERVISORY APPRAISER (ONLY IF REQUIRED)

Signature Signature
Name Name
Company Name Company Name
Company Address Company Address

Telephone Number Telephone Number
Email Address Email Address
Date of Signature and Report Date of Signature
Effective Date of Appraisal State Certification #

or State License #State Certification #
Stateor State License #

or Other State # Expiration Date of Certification or License
State
Expiration Date of Certification or License SUBJECT PROPERTY

Did not inspect subject propertyADDRESS OF PROPERTY APPRAISED
Did inspect exterior of subject property from street
Date of Inspection
Did inspect interior and exterior of subject propertyAPPRAISED VALUE OF SUBJECT PROPERTY $

CLIENT Date of Inspection
Name
Company Name

COMPARABLE SALES

Company Address Did not inspect exterior of comparable sales from street
Did inspect exterior of comparable sales from street

Email Address Date of Inspection

Page 4 of 4

20LPCBC

William H. Mosley
Mosley Appraisal Service

107A Old Montgomeryville RD NW
Milledgeville, GA 31061

478-453-3528
mosleyappraiser@gmail.com

10/30/2020
October 29, 2020

CR543

GA
01/31/2021

108 Jackson ST
Eatonton, GA  31024

5,000

Putnam County Board of Commissioners
c/o pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us

Eatonton,, GA  31024

Mosley Appraisal Service

65

mailto:mosleyappraiser@gmail.com
mailto:pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us


File No.

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Client

20LPCBC

Legal Description
Intended User Putnam County Board of Commissioners

108 Jackson ST
Eatonton Putnam GA 31024

Putnam County Board of Commissioners

Mosley Appraisal Service

66



File No.

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Client

20LPCBC

SITE PLAN
Intended User Putnam County Board of Commissioners

108 Jackson ST
Eatonton Putnam GA 31024

Putnam County Board of Commissioners

Mosley Appraisal Service

67



File No.

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Client

20LPCBC

FLOOD MAP
Intended User Putnam County Board of Commissioners

108 Jackson ST
Eatonton Putnam GA 31024

Putnam County Board of Commissioners

Mosley Appraisal Service

68



File No.

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Client

20LPCBC

Location Map
Intended User Putnam County Board of Commissioners

108 Jackson ST
Eatonton Putnam GA 31024

Putnam County Board of Commissioners

Mosley Appraisal Service

69



File No.

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Client

20LPCBC

Intended User Putnam County Board of Commissioners
108 Jackson ST

Eatonton Putnam GA 31024
Putnam County Board of Commissioners

Mosley Appraisal Service

70



File No.

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Client

20LPCBC

Intended User Putnam County Board of Commissioners
108 Jackson ST

Eatonton Putnam GA 31024
Putnam County Board of Commissioners

Mosley Appraisal Service

71



File No.

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Client

20LPCBC

PHOTOGRAPH ADDENDUM
Intended User Putnam County Board of Commissioners

108 Jackson ST
Eatonton Putnam GA 31024

Putnam County Board of Commissioners

FRONT VIEW OF
SUBJECT PROPERTY

SIDE VIEW OF
SUBJECT PROPERTY

STREET SCENE OF
SUBJECT PROPERTY

Mosley Appraisal Service

72



File No.

Property Address

City County State Zip Code

Client

20LPCBC

PHOTOGRAPH ADDENDUM
Intended User Putnam County Board of Commissioners

108 Jackson ST
Eatonton Putnam GA 31024

Putnam County Board of Commissioners

COMPARABLE #1

219 Thompkins St
Eatonton, GA 31024

Price $6,500
Price/SF
Date s05/20;Unk
Site Area 6970 sf

Value Indication $4,000

COMPARABLE #2

102 Spruce Ln
Eatonton, GA 31024

Price $7,500
Price/SF
Date s08/20;Unk
Site Area 28314 sf

Value Indication $5,500

COMPARABLE #3

701 Church St
Eatonton, GA 31024

Price $7,500
Price/SF
Date s10/19;Unk
Site Area 16553 sf

Value Indication $5,000

Mosley Appraisal Service

73



 INVOICE
 DATE FILE NUMBER CASE NUMBER

Client:

Item Total

$

$Total:

Thank you

Mosley Appraisal Service 10/30/2020 20LPCBC
107A Old Montgomeryville RD NW
Milledgeville, GA 31061
478-453-3528
Tax ID # 58-2479174

Putnam County Board of Commissioners
c/o pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us
Eatonton,, GA
31024

APPRAISAL FEE FOR SERVICES RENDERED 400.00

Intended User: Putnam County Board of Commissioners
108 Jackson ST
Eatonton, GA  31024
Described in DB 878, Pg 183, as shown in PB 2, pg 198, Putnam County deed records

400.00

Mosley Appraisal Service

74

mailto:pvanhoute@putnamcountyga.us

	Top
	Item #10.	2020-11-06 BOC GDOT Cost Agreement
	PI 0013615 - Putnam BOC -Water Facilities_ Actual Cost Agreement
	PI 0013615 - Putnam BOC -Water Facilities_ Actual Cost Agreement Cover Letter

	Item #11.	2020-11-06 BOC Traffic Signal
	Updated Signal Application Form - SR 44 at Scott Road

	Item #12.	2020-11-06 BOC Surplus
	Jackson Street Property-Fixed Asset
	Jackson Street Property-Tax Map
	Jackson Street Property Appraisal

	Item #13.	2020-11-06 BOC CM Report
	Item #14.	2020-11-06 BOC CA Report
	Item #15.	2020-11-06 BOC Comm Announcements
	Item #16.	2020-11-06 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

